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Vision
Elahi Cotton Mills Limited’s vision is to run on purely professional grounds and to accomplish, build
up and sustain a good reputation within textile industry by marketing premium quality yam by means
of honesty, integrity and commitment.
Mission Statement
It is the mission of the Company:

- To transform the Company into a modern and dynamic yam manufacturer and to provide
premium quality products to customers.

- To foster a culture of trust in order to make professional life at the Elahi Cotton Mills Limited a
stimulating and challenging experience for all our people,

- To build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earning distribution of adequate
return to shareholders, employees and to contribute towards the government revenues.

- To expand sales of the Company through good Governance and faster a sound and dynamic
team 50 as to achieve optimum profitably for the Company for sustaining and equitable growth
and prosperity of the Company.

- To make comprehensive arrangements for the training of our workers technicians.

- To strive for the continuous development of Pakistan while adding value to the textile sector.

- To continue to earn the respect, confidence and goodwill of our customers and suppliers.

- To earn and sustain the trust of our stakeholders through efficient resource management.



CHAIRMAN’'S REVIEW REPORT:

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited (ELCM) has performed thieir duties diligently
in upholding the best interest of shareholders of the Company and has managed the affairs of the Company in an
effective and efficient manner, The Board has exercised its powers and has performed its duties as stated in the
Companies Act 2017 (previously Companies Ordinance 1984) and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019,

Further, the Board during the year ended 30 June 2021 played an effective role in managing the affairs of the
Company and achieving its objectives in the following manner:

* The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation of Executives, non-executive and independent
directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code and that members of the Board and its
respective committees has adequate skill, experience and knowledge 1o manage the affairs of the Company;

* The Board has developed and put in place a formal and effective mechanism for an annual evaluation of its
own performance and that of its Committees and members of the Board. On the basis of the feedback received
through this mechanism overall performance of the Board has been found to be Good and effective:

* The Board has formed an Audit and HRR Committees and hus approved their respective terms of references
and has assigned adequate resources so that the committees perform their responsibilities diligently;

* The Bourd has ensured that three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Programe due
to their qualification and experience and that the SECP has granted exemption to three Directors. One Director
has taken certification under the Directors Training Program and the remaining shall obtain certification under
the DTP program in due course of time;

* The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and its committee were held with the requisite quorum
and that the minutes of all the meetings (including committees) are appropriately recorded and maintained:

* The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and carporate values
adhered through the Company and have developed significant policies for smooth functioning;

* All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committess to strengthen
and formalize the corporate decision making process:

* The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place;

* The Board has prepared and approved the Director's report and has ensured that the directors' report is
published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the Company and the content of the directors’
report are in accordance with the requirement of applicable laws and regulations;

* The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely manner and the
Board members are kept abreast of developments between meetings;

* The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulation applicable on the Company.

Based on aforementioned it can reasonably be stated that Board of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited has played
instrumental role in ensuring that corporate objectives are achieved in line with the expectation of shareholders
and other important stakeholders,

Acknowledgement
On behalf of the Board, | appreciate untiring efforts of our employees and express pratitude to all stakeholders
including our valued customers for their continued cooperation and support.
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Chairman
September 27, 2021



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
NOTICE OF 51"
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 51" Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders of the Company will be held at
the Registered Office of the Company at 270-Sector 19, Industrial Area, Islamabad on October 25, 2021 at
10,30 a.m. to transact the following business:-

1
2.

To Confirm the minutes of the 50™ Annual General Meeting.

To consider, approve and adopt the Chairman’s Review Report, the Reports of Directors and
Auditors together with Audited Financial Ststements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2021.

To appoint Auditors of the Company for the next financial year and 1o fix their remuneration. The
Audit Committee and Board of Directors have recommended for reappointment of M/s. BDO
Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants as external auditors.

To transact any other ordinary business of the Company with the prior permission of the Chairman.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Islamabad,
September 27, 2021. .

( MAHFOOZ ELAHI )
Chief Executive

The Shure Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Oktober 19, 2021 1o October 25, 2021 (bath days
inclusive), Transfers received at the office of Share Registrar Mfs. Corplink (Pvt) limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K
Cammercial, Model Town, Lahore: at the close of business on Oictober 18, 2021 will be treated in time for attending the
Annul Genersl Meeting. The Company shall arrange all profective measunes 1o the participant in this AGM.

A member entitled to attend and vote in the meeting is authorized mqspuhtmmherm:mbcrnmytumm
and vate for him or her.

Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, cntitled to vote at this meeting must bring hisher original NIC with him/her
to prove hister identity, and in case of proxy, a copy of shareholders attested NIC must be attached with the proxy form
and shall authenticate histher identity by showing his/her original National {dentity Card (NIC) or passport at the time of
attending the miccting.  Representatives of corporate members should bring the.usual documents required for such
purpose.

I order 1o valid, an instrument of proxy anid the power of Attomey or other authority (if any) under which it is signed.
or a notarially centified copy of such power or Authority, must be reached a1 the Registered Office of the Company nol
less thun 48 hours before the time of the Meeting,

In compliance with SECP notification No, 634(1)y2014 dated July 10, 2014, the nudited financial stutements and reports
of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been placed on the Company™s wehsite: wiwew.elahicotton.com for
the information, download and review of sharcholders.

Pursuant to SECP Circular No. 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if Company receives Consent Form from al lenst five
members or any member holding nggregate 10 or more sharcholding residing at geographical location to participate in
the mecting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company shall arrange video
conference facility in that city subjeet to availubility of such facility in that city. To avail this facility please provide
following information and submit to registered office of the Company:

Ii'wWe _ of being a member of Elahi Cotton Mills Limited, holding
ordinary shares as per Register FolioCDC Account No. herchy opt for video conference facility
i Signature of Member(s) .

I sccordance with the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and subsequent directive received from the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan on the subject, the Company hereby requests the physical sharcholders
to Convenl their Physical Shares into Book-Entry Form through Investor Accounts Services of Central Depository
Company o any Participant/ TRE Certificate-holder of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 51 Annual Report which includes the audited financial
statements of the Company together with the auditors' report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Financial Results

The principal business activity of the Company is to manufacture and sale of Pure Polyester Yarn. During the
year under review, the Company registered a turnover of Rs. 508.766 million as compared to Rs. 436.156 million
in the preceding year showing increase of Rs. 72.610 million (16.65 %) whereas the cost of sales increased from
Rs, 415.323 million to Rs. 487.867 million showing increase of Rs, 72.544 million (17.47%). The Company
eamed gross profit of Rs. 20,898 million as compared to gross profit of 20,833 million in the previous year. The
increase in tumover as compared to previous year is due to increase in production. Last year, the operations of
the Company remained suspended from March 27, 2020 to May 31, 2020 due to Covid-19 lockdown. The
financial results of the Company for the year under review are as under:

RUPEES IN
MILLION
Sales 508.766
Cost of Sales 487.867
Gross Profit 20.898
Administrative expenses 8.497
Other operating expenses 1.972
Other income 1.417
Financial Charges 0.002
Profit before taxation 11.844
Provision for taxation 6.530
Profit after taxation 5314
Earning per share (Rs.) 4.09

The Company earned profit before taxation of Rs. 11.844 million as compared to profit of Rs. 12.033 millien in
the last year and profit after taxation of Rs. 5.314 million as compared to profit of Rs. 6.404 millien. The
decrease In profitability is due to increase in the cost of salary & wages, electricity, stores & spares and provision
for taxation. Due to excessive electric shutdown the Company has closed one shift throughout the year and hence
could not utilized 100% capacity. During the year the Company could not make payment of current portion of
loan from Directors of Rs. 62,955 million due to financial constraints.

The auditors have drawn attention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements that the Company's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by Rs. 39.627 million. The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 52.048 million that
exceeds the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 39.048 million. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that cast doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year under review, the Company earned profit before tax amounting 1o Rs. 11.844 million and net
profit after taxation amounting to Rs, 5.3 14 million. Accumulated loss has been reduced from Rs. 58.480 million
to Rs. 52.048 million. The current ratio of the Company has also improved as compared to previous year. The
Management is making every effort 1o minimize the impact through improve efficiency and better marketing.
The Sponsor Directors are continuously supporting in the form of funds as and when required by the Company.
The Management has neither intention nor the necessity of liquidation or ceasing manufacturing operation in
foreseeable future. So, with the successful efforts of the Management, the Company will continue as a going

concem.












Name of Director Board Audit HR&R

Commitiee Committes

Mr. Mahboob Elahi 9 6 N/A

Mr. Mahfooz Elahi 11 N/A N/A

Mr. Mahmood Elahi 11 N/A 4

Mr. Farrukh Ahmed B 6 4

Mr. Ahmed Shaffi 7 6 N/A
M. Azeem Afazl Hashmi 6 N/A 4
Mrs. Samina Begum b N/A NIA

m) Three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Program due to their qualification
and relevant experience and SECP has granted exemption 1o these Directors, One Board member has
attained certification of Directors Training Program. The remaining directors shall obtain certification
under the DTP program in due course of time.

n) The pattern of sharcholding as required by the code along-with trading of shares by Directors, executives
and their spouses has been included in this annual report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board of Directors is pleased 1o record word of thanks to its members. The Staff — management remained
pleasantly co-operative. | together with fellow Directors, wish to acknowledge our gratitude to the siaff members
for performing their duties.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
%&1 MW ol X 2 b
(MAHFOOZ ELAHI) (MAHMOOD ELAHI)
Chief Executive Director

Islamabad.
September 27, 2021
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATAMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVYERNANCE)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

(] ]

10

12

The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
| Male: 6 b Female: 1

The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names

Independent Directors Ahmed Shaffi, M. Azeem Afzal Hashmi
Executive Directors Mahfooz Elahi, Mahmood Elahi
MNon-Executive Directors | Mahboob Elahi, Farrukh Ahmad
Female Director Samina Begum

Fractional figures on account of Independent Directors and Executive Directors have been rounded off to
the nearest digit.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

The Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the company. A complete record of the particulars of significant policies along with the dates on
which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers ol the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedure for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and Regulations,

Three Directors of the Company are exempt from Directors Training Program due to their qualification
and relevant experience and SECP has granted exemption to these three Directors. One Board member
has attained certification of Directors Training Program. The remaining Directors shall obtain
certification under the DTP program in due course of time.

There was no new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:

a)  Audit Committes;
* Ahmed Shaffi — Chairman
» Mahboob Elahi — Member
* Farrukh Ahmed - Member



b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee;

* M, Azeem Afzal Hashmi- Chairman

* Mahmood Elahi - Member
* Farrukh Ahmed ~ Member

13 The terms of reference of the aforesaid Committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
Committee for compliance.

14 The frequency of meetings of the Committees were as per following:

) Audit Committee
* | st Quarter: 2 meetings.
* 2nd Quarter: | meeting.
* 3rd Quarter; I meeting.
= 4th Quarter: 2 meetings.
b) Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
* |51 Quarter: -
* 2nd Quarter; 2 meetings
* 3rd Quarter: .
* 4th Quarter: 2 meetings.

15 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function that is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the company.

16 The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares
of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

I8 We confirm that all other requirements of Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with,

19 W confirm that the Company has complied with respect to all other material requirements of the
Regulations,

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
& 1 x - I
' \4.-'\“1 l“:::'-dnru'ps‘(- o
(MAHFOOZ ELAHI) (MAHMOOD ELAHI)
Chief Executive Director
Islamabad.

September 27, 2021



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

LAST SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15
Paid up capital 13,000,000 | 13,000,000 13,000,000 13,000,000 | 13,000,000 13,000,000
Reserve -~ -- - -~ -- -

Fixed asset 125,430,225 | 129465424 | 133,020393 | 90,645,274

(at cost less depreciation) 94,371,045 | 97,401,104
Accumulated depreciation 17.962,142 13,826,943 86,144,198 | 84,727,566 | 81.231.098 77,246,989
Long term investment - -- - - - -
Current assets 51,271,174 38.053.231 33,872,243 27,278,616 | 25,171,495 22,016,109
Current Liabilities 96,112,077 | 93,949,275 92,055,774 | 94,260,651 | 92.618,996 88,812,079
Income

Sales 436,156,028 | 503.030,973 | 395284245 | 320825272 | 283,618,449 | 288 805,082
Other Income 681,809 752,358 2,388.879 1,273.500 87.637 312,314
Gross profit / (loss) 20,832,990 | 13,890,493 11,626,378 2,335,957 4,541,755 6,517,203
Pre tax profit / (loss) 12,032,630 6,393,822 7,699,736 | (1,987,532) | (2,212,191) 1,411,310
Taxation (prior year) (21,943) 441,140 - (92,305) (135,400) (242,038)
Taxation (current vear) 6,547,226 6,196,233 3,760,566 | (2,443,848) 1,949,945 1,779,382
Profit/(loss) after taxation 6,404,213 716445 | 3.939.170 | (4,339,074) | (4.026.736) (126,034)
Un-appropriated profit/(loss) 58,480,232 | (66,292,141) | (69.462,716) | (76,677.660) | (73,963.389) | (71,943.701)
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Elahi Cotton Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2021 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is Lo review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
contral covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2021.

ISLAMABAD B gbrp b 1lo
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DATED: ) ] SEP 2021 Engagernent Partner: Iffat Hussain
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial pesition as at June 30, 2021, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our

knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at June 30, 2021 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, its changes in equity and
the cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1.2 in the financial statements which indicates that as of June 30, 2021,
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 39.627 million. The
accumulated losses have exceeded the issued, subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 39.048 million
as at June 30, 2021 and accumulated losses as of that date amounted to Rs. 52.048. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1.2, indicate the existence of material
uncertainty which may cast doubt about the Company's ability to continue as going concern. Qur
opinion is not modified in respect of its matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed ;.I"II Ee
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context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

How the matter was addressed in our
Key audit matters g

Control environment relating to the financial reporting process and related IT

5. No
1.

systems

The IT control environment relating to the
financial reporting process and the
application controls of individual IT
systems have an impact on the selected
audit approach.

As the financial statements are based on
extensive number of data flows from
multiple IT systems, consequently the
financial reporting control environment is
determined as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included evaluation
of the financial reporting process and
related control environment, as well as
testing of the effectiveness of controls
including general IT controls. Our audit
procedures focused on testing the
reconciliation and approval controls as well
as on evaluating the administration of
access rights.

Our audit procedures extensively consisted
of several substantive procedures as well
as data analysis relating to the most
significant balances on the profit and loss
account and statement of financial

position.

Revenue Recognition

The Company focuses on revenue as a key
performance measure which could create
an incentive for revenue to be recognized
before the risks and rewards have been
transferred, resulting in a significant risk
associated with revenue from an audit
procedure.

Due to the significant risk associated with
revenue recognition and the wark effort
from the audit team, the recognition of
revenue is considered to be a key audit
matter.

Refer to note 5.15 of the financial
statements

Dur audit procedures included considering
the appropriateness of the Company's
revenue recognition accounting policies
and assessing compliance with the policies
in accordance with the applicable financial

reporting framework.

e Control testing over the point of
transfer of risk and rewards was
supported by  substantive  audit
procedures including, amongst others:

e Performing analytical tests on the
revenue.

¢ Testing a sample of sales transactions
around year end to ensure inclusion in
the correct Period

* Testing of a sample of sales and trade
receivables at year end by agreeing a

sample of open invoices at year end to
subsequent receipts from customers.

ahim & Co. Chartered Accountants Page - 2
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants Page- 3
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

[Pelutss-
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Rased on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is |ffat Hussain.

ISLAMABAD ﬁj,{j 5%.&“; A If-u'--
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

DATED: ) | SFF 201 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

flabotser.
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2021
= 2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets 6 126,598,189 125,430,225
Long term security deposits 918,810 918.810
= Loans and advances i 2,758,500 2.614.508
130,275,499 128,963,543
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools 8 2,018,079 2,114,022
Stock in trade 9 25,683 867 12,896,840
Trade debts 10 2,433,822 4,619,018
Loans and advances 11 301,923 675,921
Short term prepayments 333,665 74452
Tax refunds due from government 12 1,210,841 -
i Taxation - net 13 84,400 371,515
Cash and bank balances 14 14,485,515 30,519,406
46,552,121 51,271,174
TOTAL ASSETS 176,827,620 _ 180,234,717
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 15 13,000,000 13,000,000
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 16 104345432 106,235,835
Accumulated loss (52,048,073)  (58,480,232)
65,297,359 60,755,603
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred liabilities 17 [ 25,351,398 H 23,367,037
Long term loan from directors 18 - -
25,351,398 23,367,037
CURRENT LIABILITIES
- Current portion of long term loan from directors 18 62,954 546 63,282,547
Due to associated undertaking 19 - 5.566.077
Short term loan from directors 20 9,100,000 9,100,000
i Trade and other payables 21 13,856,646 17,895,782
Dividend payable / Unclaimed 22 267,671 267.671
86,178,863 96,112,077
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 176,827,620 _ 180,234,717
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23 - -

- The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these ﬁnam:lal slatemenm
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 24 508,765,674 436,156,028
Cost of sales 25 487,867,403 415,323,038
Gross profit 20,898,271 20,832,990
Administrative expenses 26 8,496,573 7.972,744
Selling and distribution expenses 567,200 -
Other operating charges 27 1,405,271 1,457,900

10,469,044 9,430,644
Operating profit 10,429,227 11,402,346
Other income 28 1,416,736 681,809
Financial charges 29 1,747 51,525
Profit before taxation 11.844.216 12.032.630
Taxation 30 (6,530,147) (5,628.417)
Profit after taxation 5,314,069 6,404,213
Earning per share - basic and diluted 32 ey 4.ﬂi 493

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial m%_
>
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note

Profit afiler taxation

Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be subsequently classified to profit or loss
- (Loss)/gain on remeasurement of defined benefit liability 17.1
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
5,314,069 6,404,213
(772,313) (34.706)
(772,313) (34,706)
4,541,756 6,369,507

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

% , wWial [ £abn
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Reserves
Sh i
s apiial Capital ~ Revenue
Revaluation
Issued, Total
subscribed and _._,”ﬂ__hu i oo
paid-up capital 4 equipment
Note Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2019 13,000,000 108,328,237 (66,292,141) 55,036,096
- Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2019 at the rate
Rs. 0.5 per share . 3 (650,000) (650.000)
Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2020
Profit for the year - 6,404,213 6,404,213
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - (34,706) (34,706)
; - 6,369,507 6,369,507
Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

- On account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 16 . (2.092,402) 2,092 402 -
Balance as at June 30, 2020 13,000,000 106,235,835 (58.480.232) 60,755,603
Total comprehensive income for the year ended June 30, 2021

Profit for the year - - 5,314,069 5,314,069

Other comprehensive loss for the year - (772,313) (772,313)

- 4,541,756 4,541,756
Transfer from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment:

- On account of incremental depreciation-net of deferred tax 16 = (1,890,403) 1,890,403 -
Balance as at June 30, 2021 13,000,000 104,345,432 (52,048.073) 65,297,359
The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial mﬁnﬂmumq
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation
Financial charges
Provision for gratuity

Profit before working capital changes
Changes in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in current asscts

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Short term prepayments

Tax refunds due from government
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Financial charges paid
Income tax paid
Gratuity paid

Net cash (used in)/ generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans given to employees
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term loan from directors
Repayment lo associated undertaking
Dividend paid during the ycar
Short term loan from directors

Net cash used in financing aclivities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from | to 45 form an integral part of these financial stal:mn:ms

H"u-li_.cl,_{:._“_u . Ir“\ :-".ff.,,,fa.&

DIRECTOR

..

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
11,844,216 12,032,630
4,025,544 4,135,199
1,747 51,525
4,865,771 4,235,346
§.893.062 8,422,070
20,737,278 20,454,700
95,943 (918,611)
(12,787,027) 577,414
2,185,196 (881,989)
373,998 (271,301)
(259,213) 220,560
(1,210,841) 794,397
(4,039,136) 5.208.222
(15,641,080) 4,728,691
5,006,198 25,183,392
(1,747) (51,525)
(6,769,864) (7,961,724)
(3.126,900) (1,826,750)
(9,898,511) (9,839,999)
(4,802,313) 15,343,393
(143,992) (246,000)
(3,193,508) (100,000)
(5,337,500) (346,000)
(328,001) (3,500,000)
(5,566,077) -
- (630,494)
- 1,500,000
(5,894.078) (2,630.494)
(16,033,891) 12,366,899
30.519.406 18,152,507
14.435,5 15 3051 iﬂi;
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ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

1

1.1

1.2

31

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated as a public limited company on June 22, 1970 under the
repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017) and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The principal business of the Company is manufacture and sale of yarn.

As of June 30, 2021, the Company's current liabilitics exceeded its current assets by Rs.
39,627 million (2020; Rs. 44.840 million). The Company has accumulated loss of Rs. 52.048
million (2020: Rs. 58.480 million). The Company's accumulated losses exceeded the issued,
subscribed and paid up capital by Rs. 39.048 million. These conditions indicate the existence
of material uncertainty which may cast doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as going
concern.

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis without any adjustment
to assets and liabilities based on the profitable future projections. The management is also
confident of improving profitability through streamlining the operations of the Company and
based on projections, demonstrate increases in revenue and cash flows and hence improvement
in the financial performance and position of the company, for the year ending June 30, 2021
and onwards.

GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS

The registered office of the Company is situated at 270, sector 1-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad.
The mill (plant) of the Company is located at Mandra - Chakwal Road, Tehsil Gujar Khan,
District Rawalpindi, Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ( IASB ) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act. 2017 have

been followed.
foelotes -
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32

33

34

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain fixed assets which have been stated at revalued amount and recognition of certain staff
retirement benefils at present value.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except
for cash flow information.

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires the management to make estimates, assumptions and use judgments that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and
expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historic experience and other factors including reasonable expectations of future cvents.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively commencing from the period
of revision.

Judgments and estimates made by the management that may have a significant risk of material
adjustments to the financial statements in subsequent years are discussed in note 5.25.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

Key judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. In
addition, it requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a high degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates arc significant to the financial
statements, are documented in the following accounting policies and notes, and relate
primarily to:

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment —
Note 5.25.3& 6

- Provision for impairment of inventories - Note 5.25.1 & 9

- Provision for impairment of stores and spares - Note 5254 & 8

- Obligation of defined benefit obligation - Note 5.25.5 & 17.1

- Provision for expected credit losses — Note 5.25.6 & 10

- Estimation of contingent liabilitics - Note 5.25.7 & 23
fudiess-
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4.1

42

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND
REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2021

The following stantdards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30. 2021. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or
after)
Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, 1AS 34,
IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32
to update these pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes
from the framework or to indicate where they refer to different version of
the Conceptual Framework. January 01, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations' - Defination of a
business January 01, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 'Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and IFRS 7 'Financial
Instruments: Disclosures' - Interest rate benchmark reform January 01, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Covide - 19 related rent consessions June 01, 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements’ and [AS 8
'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors' -
Definition of material January 01, 2020

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are nol
expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain
additional disclosures.

Page -3



Interest Rate Benchmarch Reform - Phase 2
{Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendmends to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the
conceptual framework

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief regarding
Covide - 19 related rent consessions

Amendmends 0 IAS 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non=current

Amendmends to IAS 1'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a single transaction

Amendmends to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds
before intended use

Amendmends to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

January 01, 2021

January 01, 2022

April 01, 2021

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2022

January 01, 2022

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities

and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Page- 4
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5.1

b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are
set out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets except for frechold land, building and plant and machinery are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if any. Frechold land, building and plant and
machinery are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation or impairment, if
any.

Depreciation is charged on the basis of written down value method whereby cost or revalued
amount of an asset is written off over its useful life without taking into account any residual
value. Full month's depreciation is charged on addition, while no depreciation is charged in the
month of disposal or deletion of assets.

Major renewals and repairs are capitalized and the assets so replaced are retired. Minor
renewals or replacement, maintenance and repairs are charged to income as and when incurred.
Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as profit or loss
for the year.

Amount equivalent to incremental depreciation charged on revalued assets is transferred from
surplus on revaluation of building and plant and machinery net of deferred taxation to retained
carnings (unappropriated profit).

The assets' residual value and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if significant, at cach
balance sheet date.

Disposal of assets is recognized when significant risks and reward incidental to the ownership
have been transferred to buyers. Gain and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the profit and loss accounts,

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery
is recognized in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity
as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except 10 the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decrease in carrving amount arising on the revaluation of land, buildings and plant and
machinery is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in

the revaluation surplus on property, plant and cquipment relating to a previous revaluation of
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5.2

5.3

54

that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s
shareholders. The surplus on revaluation buildings and plant and machinery to the extent of
incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Impairment losses

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of
financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indications exist, the assets' recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent
of impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group
that generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment
losses are recognized as expense in profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is
recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the assel's
revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of
financial position date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that assel's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the satement of profit and loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores and spares are stated at cost less provision for slow moving and obsolete items, Cost is
determined by using the moving average method. Items in transit are valued at cost
comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Spare parts of capital nature which can be used only in connection with an item of property,
plant and equipment are classified as tangible fixed assets under "Plant and machinery”
category and are depreciated over a time period not exceeding the useful life of the related

assets,
The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on a periodic basis and
provision is made for slow moving and obsolescence on periodic basis.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade, except stock in transit, arc valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined as follows:
Poletea.
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5.6

5.7

5.8

59

- Raw materials - al moving average method except stock in transit
- Work in process - at cost of material plus proportionate production overheads
- Finished goods - at cost of material as above plus proportionate production overheads

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges thereon.

Trade receivables

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used to
base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Loans and advances

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and
measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is used 10
base the calculation of expected credit loss.

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amounts which is the fair value of cash and
bank balances.

Share capital

Share capital is classified as equity and recognized at the face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown as a deduction in equity.

Staff retirement henefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees who
attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity, Contributions are made
based on actuarial recommendations and in line with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The most recent actuarial valuation is carried out at June 30, 2021 using the
projected unit credit method (refer note 17). Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as
income or expense in the other comprehensive income. The Company recognizes expense in
accordance with IAS 19 "Employee Hc&cﬁﬁlf“.
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Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in equity.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income on current rates of taxation after
taking into account the rebates and tax credits available, if any, or one percent of turnover,
whichever is higher in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Company recognizes tax liabilities for pending tax assessments using estimates based on
expert opinion obtained from tax/legal advisors. Differences, if any, between the income tax
provision and the tax liability finally determined is recorded when such liability is so
determined.

Deferred

Deferred tax is computed using the balance sheet liability method providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the liability is settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available and the credits can be utilized.

Further, the Company has recognized the deferred tax lability on surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets which has been adjusted against the related surplus.

Prior years

The taxation charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge relating to prior
years, arising from assessments and changes in estimates made during the current year, except
otherwise stated.

Borrowing

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the amortized cost unless classified as fair value through
profit and loss they are initially recognized when they are received and measured at amortized
cost which is fair value of consideration . Mark up, interest and other borrowing costs are
charged to profit and loss in the period in which they are inc%_
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5.14

5.15

Borrowing cost on long term finances which are specifically obtained for the acquisition of
qualifying assets are capitalized up to the date of commencement of commercial production on
the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to profit and loss aceount in the
period in which these are incurred.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for the goods and services received, whether or not billed
to the Company.

Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting future cash flows at
appropriate discount rate where ever required. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.,

Leases

leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or loss over

the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. Payments associated with leascs
with a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets are recognized as an
expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises of the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the sale

of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Company's activitics. Revenue from sale of
goods is shown net of sales tax. Revenue is recognized when the company completes it
performance obligation in the contract. Due to nature of the business, revenue is recognized at

point at time basis.

The revenue arising from different activities of the Company is recognized on the following
basis:

- Local sales are recorded on dispaich of goods to customers.
- Secrap sales are recognized when delivery is made to customers.
= Interest income is recognized as revenue on time proportion basis.
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5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the vear. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalent comprise cash in hand, cash
at bank and short term investments with maturity of not later than three months at known
amount in rupees.

Related party transactions

Transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at
arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party
transactions using valuation modes as admissible.

Dividend and appertioning to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period
in which these are approved.

Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through
profit or loss, fair value through other comprehensive income and amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All the
financial assets of the Company as at statement of financial position date are carried at
amortized cost.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both the following conditions and is
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

(1) 1t is held with in a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount uutsundinE. :
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Equity Investments at FVOCI

These assets are initially measured at cost plus transaction cost that are directly attributable to
its acquisition. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as
income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are initially recognized at cost. Subsequently, these are measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Impairment

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Al cach reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized
cost are credit-impaired, A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off
when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety
or a portion thereof.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the
consideration given and received respectively., These financial assets and liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost, as the case may be. The particular
measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy stalements associated
with each iten'!.
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5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

Derecognition

The financial assets are de-recognized when the Company loses control of the contractual right
that comprise the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognized when they are
extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is ofTset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of
past events, existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company: or the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to

transactions with any of the Company’s other components. The Company has only one
reportable segment.

Significant accounting judgments and critical accounting estimates / assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards
requires the management to:-

- exercise its judgment in process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, and
- use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
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5.25.6

5.25.7

Expected credit losses

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. Company uses a provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for trade receivables.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates and
forecast of economic conditions that are expected to deteriorate over the next vear which can
lead to an increased number of defaults. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward looking e¢stimates are analyzed.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all the legal cases on regular basis. Based on expected
outcome and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.
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6  DPERATING FIXED ASSETS

The following is the statement of operating fixed assets:

Furniture Factory
Desert Free hold s Plant and | fixture and | Computer Towie and equipmentand| Motor
plion other Taolal
lard Residential | F machinery olfice equipment nstallntiens sclentific vehicles
) cquipment instruments
Rupees
Year ended June 30, 2021
Net carrying value basis
Opening book value 86,250,000 4157,000 11,924,033 22592715 71,968 43 150,838 51512 226106 125430225
Additions (at cost) - 168,970 - 2017938 65,600 - 2,641,000 - - 5,193,508
Depreciation charge (217.620) (1.192.403) (2.3359805) {11,570} [LE)] (213,159 (5.752)  (45221) (4,025544)
Cloging net book value £6,250000 4408350 10,731,630 22270848 125.998 29 2.578.679 51,770 180885 126,598, _m.wl
Giross carrying value basis
Cost/revalue 86,250,000  5193,170 15454299 31265304 1.114,252 5,000 4,901,443 2,001,887 2400520 148585875
Accumulated depreciation = T84 R0 4722660  B994436 088,254 4,97 2322764 1950117 2219635 21 987.686
Net book value 86,250,000 4408350 10.730L630 22270848 125,998 29 2578679 51.770 180,885 126,508,189
— —— — e — —— e ———
Year ended June 30, 2020
Net carrying value basis
Opening book valwe 86,250,000 4375790 13248926 249963536 79964 64 167,598 63913 282633 1294565424
Additions (a1 cost) - - - 100,000 - - = . . 100,000
Depreciation charge - 218,790 (1,324.893) (2503.821) {7,996} (21) (16,760) (6.391)  (56.527) (4,135,199
Closing net book value 86,250,000 4157000 11,924,033 223591715 71.968 43 150,838 57.522 226.106 _uu.ﬁ__._hwul
Gross carrying value basis
Cost/revalue 86,250,000 4724200 15454299 29247366 1,048,652 5,000 2,260,443 2.001.887 2400520 143,392,367
Accumulated depreciation - 67200 3330266 6654651 976,684 4,957 2,106,604 1944368 2174414 17962142
Net book value B6,250,000 4157000 11924033 22591715 _ T1968 43 150,838 51,522 226,106 125,430,225
Amnual rate of depreciation (%) % 10% 10% 1% 1% 1% 10% 20%

6.1 Free hold land of the Company is located st Mandra - Cakwal road, Tehsil Gujar Khan, District Rawalpindi, Punjab, Pakistan with an area of 23.4 acres Details of factory and residential

buildings of the company constructed on this land are as follows:
fadketis -
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Covered Area

Location Particulars (In sq.f1)
Mandra-Chakwal road, Tehsil @) Main mill building including cotton 70,827
Gujar Khan, District Rawalpindi, godown, store room, canteen block,

Punjab, Pakistan. workshops and other civil works.
b) Workers' accommodations, guard 14,744
rooms, bungalows and BOQs houses.
85,571

6.2 Revaluation of frechold land, building and plant and machinery

6.2.1 The Company has adopted the revaluation model for subsequent measurement of freehold land,

buildings and plant and machinery. Further details of revaluation carried out by the Company to date
are as follows:

Name of independent valuer Date of revaluation Revaluation surplus
(Rupees)

M/s Asrem (Private) Limited December 31, 2017 46,914,451

M/s Asrem (Private) Limited June 30, 2014 43,795,541

M/s Asrem (Private) Limited June 7, 2010 22,258,957

M/s Zia Consultants June 30, 1996 33,215,659

622 Ms Arsem (Private) Limited are at the panel of professional valuers maintained by the state bank
of Pakistan and they have appropriate qualification and relevant experience in the fair value
measurement of properties in the relevant location. The fair value of land was determined based
on the market comparable approach that reflects recent transaction price for similar properties. the
fair value of building was determined using cost approach, reflects the cost to a market participant
to conduct assess of comparable utility and age ,adjusted for depreciation factor , price factor and
obsolescence.

6.2.3 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating asscts would
have been as follows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Freehold land 299,995 299,995
Buildings on freehold land 944,817 004,544
Plant and machinery 6,775,508 5.510,404

6.2.4 The forced sale value of the revalued freehold land, buildings and plant and equipment has been
assessed at Rs. 77,625,000, Rs. 15,512,000 and Rs. 21,808,000 respectivelyl.
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7.1

8.1

8.2

2021
Note Rupees

Depreciation has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales
Administrative expenses

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured - considered good

3,751,119
274,425

2020
Rupees

3,851,865
283,334

4,025,544

4,135,199

Opening balance 2,905,508 2,574,508
Loan given to employees during the year 2,422,000 4,355,500
Payment received during the year (2,303,008) (4,024,500)
3,024,500 2,905,508
Current portion shown under current assets 11 (266,000) (291,000)
2,758,500 2,614,508

These balances represent interest free loans and advances given to employees. The Chief
Executive Officer and Directors have not taken any loans and advances from the Company.
These balances are carried at cost as the impact of amortization is not material in respect of

these financial statements.

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores
Spares

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,910,466 1,829,322
107,613 284,700
2,018,079 2,114,022

Stores and spares also include items which may result in capital expenditure but are not
distinguishable at the time of purchase. However, the stores and spares consumplion
resulting in capital expenditure are capitalized in cost of respective assets.

Cost of stores and spares recognized as expense amounts 1o Rs. 12,305,696 (2020:

8,847,179).

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw material
Work in process
Finished goods
Waste

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
5,055,338 6.690,537
2.959.875 2.678.451
16,730,902 3422832
37.752 105,020
25,683,867 12,896,840
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9.1

10

10.1

11

12

13

Cost of inventories recognized as expense amounts to Rs. 341,413,564 (2020: 208,221,462).

Note

TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured - considered good
All trade receivables are in respect of local sales.
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured-considered good
Loans

Current portion of long-term loans 7

Advances to suppliers 11.1

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
2,433,822 4619018
266,000 291,000
35,923 384,921
301,923 675.921

This represents advances to suppliers in the normal course of business. These are unsecured
and does not carry any interest or mark-up. The Chief Executive Officer and Directors have

not taken any loans and advances from the Company.

Note

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM
GOVERNMENT

Income tax
Sales tax
TAXATION - NET

Balance at beginning of the year
Waorker's Welfare Fund adjusted

Adjusted against / transferred to tax
refunds due from government

Provision for the year 30

Less: Payment/adjustment
Closing balance receivable / ( payable)
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,210,841 -
1,210,841 -
371,515 (1.064.926)
(325.971) 21,943
45,544 (1,042,983)
577.480 21,491
623,024 (1,021,492)
(7.634,450) (6,547,226)
(7.011,426) (7,568,718)
7,095,835 7.940,233
84,400 371,515
Fastre.



13.1

14

14.1

15

15.1

15.2

153

Adequate provision in respect of taxation have been made in these financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2021 (Tax year 2021).

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 99,967 28,354
Cash at bank Local currency:
Current accounts 1,980,084 6,595,276
Saving account 14.1 12,405,464 23,895,776

14,485,515 30,519,406

Saving account carries mark up at the rates ranging from 0.02% to 0.06% (2020: 0.02% to
0.06%) per annum.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized share capital:

This represents 5,000,000 (2020 : 5,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to
Rs. 50,000,000 (2020 : Rs. 50,000,000).

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital:

Number of ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/- each

2021 2020

Fully paid in
1,300,000 1,300,000 cash 13,000,000 13,000,000
——___——

All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to entitlement of dividend, voting rights, board
selection , right of final refusal and block voting,
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
16 Revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment
Balance brought forward 114,521,598 117,468,643

Add: Revaluation during the year

Less:  Transferred to equity in respect of
incremental  depreciation  charged
during the year-net of deferred tax 1,890,403 2,092,402
Related deferred tax liability during the
vear transferred to profit or loss

account 772,136 854.643
2,662,539 2,947,045
111,859,059 114,521,598
Less: Related deferred tax effect:
Balance as at July 01 8,285,763 9,140,406
Related deferred tax liability during the
year transferred to profit or loss
account (772,136) (854,643)
7,513,627 8,285,763
104,345,432 106,235,835

16.1 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is not
available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the

Companies Act, 2017.
2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
17 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
StafT retirement benefits - gratuity 17.1 16,344,032 13,832,848
Deferred taxation 17.2 9,007,366 9,534,189

25,351 398 ﬂl],}ﬁ?.ﬂil

17.1 Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
General description

The scheme provides for terminal benefits for all its permanent employees who attain the
minimum qualifying period at varying percentages of last drawn gross salary. The percentage
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17.1.1

depends on the number of service years with the Company. Annual charge is based on
actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2021 using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company faces the following risks on account of gratuity:

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater
than what the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the
benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Asset volatility - Presently the Company is not exposed to asset volatility risk.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with
reference to corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the current
plans® bond holdings.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to
meet the liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of
investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund
as advised by the actuary.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Following are a few important actuarial assumptions used in the valuation:

2021 2020
Discount rate (%) 10 8.5
Expected rate of return on plan assets (%) - -
Expected rate of increase in salary (%) 9 7.5
Average expected remaining working life time of
employee (Years) 6 6
Weighted average duration of the defined
benefits obligation (Years) 6 5
Maturity profile SLIC(2001-05)
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Reconciliation of balance due to defined benefit plan
Present value of defined benefit obligation 16,344,032 13,832,848
Fair value of plan assets - -
Closing net liability 16,344,032 _ 13,832,848
fitit
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17.1.2  Movement of the liability recognized in
the balance sheet

Opening net liability

Non current portion

Current portion
Charge for the year
Premeasurement chargeable to other

comprehensive income

Benefits paid during the year
Closing net liability

17.1.3  Movement in present value of defined
benefit obligations

Opening present value of defined benefit obligations

Non current portion
Current portion
Current service cost for the year
Interest cost for the year
Benefits paid during the year
Premeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation

Closing present value of defined benefit obligations

17.1.4  Charge for the year

Current service cost
Interest cost

Charge for the year

17.1.5  Premeasurement chargeable to other
comprehensive income

Premeasurement loss / (gain) on defined

obligation due to:

Change in demographic assumptions
Change in financial assumptions
Experience adjustment

Premeasurement loss / (gain) on obligation

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
13,832,848 11,389,546

4,865,771 4,235,346

772,313 34,706
(3,126.900) (1,826,750)
16,344,032 13,832,848

_——
13,832,848 11,389,546

3,822,872 2,925,825

1,042,899 1,309,521
(3.126,900) (1,826,750)

772,313 34,706
16,344,032 13,832,848

3,822,872 2,925,825

1,042,899 1,309,521

4,865,771 4,235,346

772,313 34.706

772,313 34.706

1716 The Company has no plan assets, therefore fair value and movement in the fair value of plan

assets has not been presented.
Aadabie.
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17.1.7  Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations sensitive to the assumption set out above.
The following table summaries how the impact on the defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result of a change in the

respeclive assumptions by one percent.

Increase in Decrease in
Assumption  Assumption
Rupees Rupees
Discount rate 15,397,007 17,349,690
Salary increase 17,349,307 15,396,818

17.18  The charge in respect of defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2022 is estimated
to be Rs. 6.197 million.

17.1.9  There are no plan assets, therefore, disclosure in respect to plan assets required as per IAS 19
"Employee Benefits" has not been made in these financial statements.

17.1.10 Comparison of five years

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustment on
obligation for the current and preceding four years is as follows:

2021 2020 2019 208 2017

Present value of
benefit obligation 16,344,032 13,832,848 11,389,546 12,148,105 9,791,152

17.1.11 Undiscounted expected benefit payments from active employces

Yearl Year2to 5 Year 6 to 10
Expected benefits payments 3,471,000 9,562,000 15,359,060

17.2 Deferred taxation

172.1  Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) arising due to temporary timing differences are as follows:
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17.2.2

17.2.3

18.1

18.2

19

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,493,739 1,248,426
Surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment 7,513,627 8,285,763
9,007,366 9,534,189
Tax rate used 29% 29%

Deferred tax asset on the difference of turnover tax and normal tax carried forward has not
been recognized as there is no reasonable certainty about future profits against which it can
be utilized,

Further.no deferred tax asset/liability has been recognized on gratuity as the Company is
claiming it as tax expense for the year.

The gross movement in the deferred tax liability during the year is as follow:

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Balance as at July 01 9,534,189 10,431,055
Charged/(credit) to profit and loss account (526,823) (896,866)

9,007,366 9,534,189

LONG TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

Balance brought forward 18.1 63,282,547 66,782,547
Payments during the year (328,001) (3,500,000)
62,954,546 63,282,547
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (62,954,546)  (63,282,547)
[ ——

This represents unsecured interest free loan from two directors and Chief Executive of the
Company. The loan was payable on July 01, 2015. As these are now payable on demand,
therefore all amounts have been transferred to current liabilities in the financial statements.

The maximum aggregate amount due to directors at the end of any month during the year was
Rs. 63,282,547 (2020: Rs. 66,782,547).

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
DUE TO ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKING
Unsecured
International Beverages (Private) Limited
Opening balance 5,566,077 5,566,077
Paid during the year (5,566,077) -
19.1 - 5,566,077
—_—— — = m— =
Pl -

Page - 24



19.1

19.2

20

20.1

21

This represents the amount payable to International Beverages (Private) Limited (IBL)
against MCB Bank Limited long term facility restructured during the year ended June 30,
2008, as per settlement agreement dated May 29, 2008 signed between the Company, IBL
and MCB Bank Limited. As per above agreement this facility was transferred in the name of
IBL,, in prior years.

As per agreement the settled amount was Rs. 17.866 million which includes Rs. 16.668
million as principal and Rs. 1.198 million as markup payable at 6% by the Company.

The amount due was repayable to IBL on July 01, 2015. As these were payable on demand,
therefore all amounts had been transferred previously to current liabilities in the financial
statements. However, the liability was fully settled during the year.

The maximum aggregate amount due to associated undertaking at the end of any month
during the year was Rs. 5,566,077 (2020: Rs. 5,566,077).

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
SHORT TERM LOAN FROM DIRECTORS
Balance brought forward 9,100,000 7,600,000
Additions during the year - 1,500,000
20.1 9,100,000 Qilf}ﬂ.{mﬂ

This represents unsecured interest free loan from two directors and Chief Executive of the
Company to meet the working capital requirements. These are payable on demand.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors - 40,965
Accrued expenses 11,314,967 12,206,013
Advances from customers 1,049,674 4,004,732
Government dues 542,601 519,274
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 21.1 638,053 649,528
Workers' Welfare Fund 278,793 325,971
Income tax payable 26,462 23,3064
Sales tax due to government 2305 122,144
Zakat payable 3,791 3,791

13,850,640 17,895,782

e
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2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
21.1  Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance at July 01, 649,528 346,940
Interest on funds utilized in Company's business - -
Allocation for the year 638,053 649,528
1,287,581 006.468
Amount paid during the year (649,528) (346.,940)
Balance at June 30, 638,053 649,528
22 DIVIDEND PAYABLE / UNCLAIMED
Dividend payable 19,506 19,506
Unclaimed dividend 248,165 248.165

22.1 267.671 267,671

Amounts transferred into dividend account - 680,000
Dividend claims received and settled . -
Profits generated from unpaid dividend account - -
Profits utilized - -

22.1  The reconciliation of carrying amount is as follows:

Opening balance 267,671 248,165
Dividends declared - 650,000
Interest on dividend - -
Less: Dividends paid - (630,494)
267,671 267,671

23 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
23.1 CONTINGENCIES

There was no contingent liability of the Company as at the June 30, 2021 (2020: Nil).
232 COMMITMENTS

There were no capital commitments as at the June 30, 2021 (2020: Nil).
Platie .
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24 SALES

Yam
Waste

- Less: sales tax

25 COST OF SALES
Raw material consumed
Store and spares consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Power charges
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation

Work in process
Opening
Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening

Closing

Waste
Opening
Closing

25.1 Raw material consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchascs
Cost of raw materials available for use

Less: Closing stock

25.2  Stores and loose tools consumed
Opening stock
Add: Purchases

- Less: Closing stock
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Note

25.1
25.2
25.3

6.3

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
504,370,326 509,812,159
885,512 490,394
595,255.838 510,302,553
(86,490,164)  (74,146,525)
355,003,058  298.419.577
12,305,696 8,847,179
74,376,337 62,042,849
55,283,137 42,060,442
572,192 311,331
98,000 79,820
3,751,119 3,851,865
501,389,629 415,613,063
2.&?3,»:51} 2.666.743
(2.959,875) (2,678.451)
(281,424) (11,708)
501,108205 415601355
3,422,832 “ 3,236,425
(16,730,902) (3.422.832)
(13,308,070) (186,407)
105,020 13,110
{3?.752;“ (105,020)
67,268 (91,910)
487,867,403 415,323,038
6,690,537 7,557,976
354,267,859 297,552,138
360,958,396 305,110,114
(5,955,338) (6,690,537)
355,003,058  298.419.577
2,114,022 1,195,411
12,209,753 9,765,790
14,323,775 10,961,201
(2,018.079) (2,114,022)
12,305,696 8.847.179
ey
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26

26.1

26.2

x|

Salaries, wages and other benefits includes an amount of Rs.

in respect of staff retirement benefits.

Note
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration 31
Salaries and other benefits 26.1
Telephone expenses

Motor running expenses

Printing, stationery and peniodicals

Rent

Rates and taxes

Advertisement

Traveling and conveyance

Entertainment

Subscription and membership fee

Depreciation 6.3
Donation 26.2
Other expenses

3,569,528 (2020: Rs. 3,195,912)

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
278,400 278,400
5,967,258 4,924,509
99.623 106,828
468,979 477,437
10,800 1,000
600,000 600,000
3,685 4,626
25,240 86.640
45,550 39,390
74,562 47416
338,348 354,778
274,425 283,334
150,000 700,000
159,703 68.386
8,496,573 7,972,744

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 1.296,243 (2020: Rs. 1,039.434) in respect of staff

retirement benefits,

This represent donation given to Al-Mudassir Trust amounting to Rs.50,000 and to Sundas
Foundation Trust amounting 1o Rs.100,000, Director of the Company or his spouse did not had

any interest at any time during the year in the donee.

OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

Legal and professional expenses
Auditor’'s remuneration
Statutory audit
Half yearly review
Fee for other certification

Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Workers' Welfare Fund
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2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
158,425 169,978
260,000 260,000
50,000 50,000
20,000 20,000
330,000 330,000
638,053 649,528
278,793 308,394
1,405,271 1,457,900
-_-=.f‘m _



28.1

29

30.1

30.2

30.3

2021 2020

Note Rupees Rupees
OTHER INCOME
Income from non-financial assets
Scrap sales 197,649 325,702
Bank profit 43,630 19618
Liabilities written back 28.1 1,175,457 336,489
1.416.736 681,809

This represents the long unclaimed outstanding balances payable to vendors written back with
the approval of the Board.

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank commission and charges I,'I4?_ 51.525
TAXATION
Provision for taxation
Current 7.634.450 6,547,226
Prior year adjustment 30.1 (577.480) (21,943)
Deferred (526,823) (B96,866)

6,530,147 5.628.417

This represents tax on undistributed profits for the year ended June 30, 2018 under section SA
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The Company has accounted for tax provision at the rate of
7.5% of its accounting profit before tax for the year ended June 30, 2018 in the financial
statements of 2018-19 as prior year charge. The provision of section SA was challenged before
the Sindh High Court vide Civil Petition No. D-4970 of 2017. The Honourable Sindh High
Court vide judgement dated April 30, 2021 declared that the insertion of section 5A in the
Income Tax Ordinance. 2001 does not fall within the parameters delineated as per Article 73 of
the Constitution of Pakistan, 1973, hence, the provision impugned is found to be ultra vires of
the Constitution, and is hereby struck down. Consequently, the provision charged on account
of tax on undistributed profit in the financial year 2018-19 is reversed / adjusted in the current
year,

Numerical reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate has not
been prepared as the Company was subject to minimum tax in the current year and prior year.

The applicable income tax rate for subsequent years beyond Tax Year 2021 was retained at
29% on account of changes made to Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 through Finance Act 2021
Therefore, deferred tax is computed at the rate of 29% applicable to the period when temporary
differences are expected to be reversed / ulmzo}
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31

a)

b)

c)

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Chief Executive, Directors and Executives
of the Company is as follows:

2021 2020
m-nun_-.—.nhﬁ Directors | Executives Total m“”..ﬂ.ﬁ Directors | Executives Total
(Rupees)

Managerial remuneration 278,400 - - 278.400 278,400 - - 278,400
Bonus - - - - a - " "
Staff retirement benefits - - - - - - - -
Medical 70.796 - - 70,796 65,276 - - 65,276
Utilities 36,688 - - 36,688 46,136 - - 46,136
Others 5,500 23,500 - 29,000 4,000 19,000 - 23,000
Total 391,384 23,500 - 414,884 393,812 19,000 - 412812
Number of persons 1 6 R I.___ 1 ml = 7

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including all benefits to Executive directors and Non executive
directors of the Company is as follows:

2021 2020
Executive Non Executive Total Executive Non Executive Total
Directors Directors Directors Directors o
(Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 301,384 - 391,384 393,812 - 393,812
Number of persons 2 5 7 2 5 7

Board meeting fee was paid to non-executive directors amounting to Rs. 18,000 during the w.nE.
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33l

EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation (Rupees)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at the
end of the year (Numbers )

Earning per share - basic and diluted (Rupees)

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
5.314,069 6,404,213
1300000, __ 1,300,000
4.09 4.93

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties and associated undertakings of the Company comprise of associated
companies, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties and
associated undertakings involve rent and advance for working capital requirements. These
transactions are as follows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Nasic of tha Relationship and  Transactions during
related party percentage the year and year
shareholding end balances
International Associated company  Payment made against
Beverages (Private) by virtue of common  balance  due to
Limited directorship associated
undertaking (5,566,077) -
Amount payable @
year end =] 5,566,077
—- L —————
Taj Mills Limited Associated company  Office Rent  paid
b}' virtue of common erl}'ﬂblﬂ ﬁl}ﬂ,ﬂﬂﬂ' ﬁ'ﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂﬁ
directorship
Amount payable at
year end -
—— ———————————1 ————————
Mahboob Elahi Director No transaction -

Amount payable at

year end 53,775,546

53,775,546

Abaias
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Name of the
related party

Relationship and

percentage
shareholding

Transactions during
the year and year
end balances

Mahfooz Elahi

Mahmood Elahi

Chief Executive

Director

Adjustment /

repayment  of  long
term loan

Loan received

Amount payable at
yvear e¢nd (Loan
obtained previously)

No transaction
Amount  payable ot

year end (Loan
obtained previously)

33.2 Compensation to key management personnel

2021
Rupees

(328,001)

13,103,999

5,175,000

2020
Rupees

(3,500,000)

1,500,000

13,432,000
—_—

5,175,000

The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading of
"Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Exccutive (note 31)". There are no
transactions with key management personnel other than under their terms of employment.

33.3 The status of outstanding balances of related parties as at June 30, 2021 are included in
"Long/short term loan from directors” (note 18 and 20) and "Due to associated undertaking”

(note 19).
fadlstes:
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34 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its financial assets and linbilities are summarized as follows: -

Financial assets
Al amortized cost
Long term security deposits
Trade debis
Loons and advances
Cash and bank balances

Finnncial linbilities
At amortized cost

Current portion of long term loan from directors

Short term loan from directors
Provision for gratulty

Duie 1o associated undertaking
Trade and other payables
Dividend payable / Unclaimed

On balance sheet gnp
Off balance shect items

Financial commitments;
Total Gap

Financinl assets
At amortized cost

Long term security deposits
Trade debis

Loans and advances

Cash and bank balances

Financial lahilities
At amortized cost

Current portion of long term loan from directors

Short term loan from directors
Provision for gratuity

Duse to associated undertaking
Trade and other payables
Dividend payable / Unclaimed

On balance sheel gap
Off balance sheet ilems

Financial commitments:
Taotal Gap

Page-33

2021
Interest/mark up bearing Not interest
Total Maturity Maturity fmark up
up o one after one bearing
year year Sub-total
Rupees

918,810 - . - 918,810

2,433,822 - - - 2,433,822

3,024 500 - - - 3,024,500

14485515 12,405 464 - 12,405 464 21,080,051

20,862,647 12,405 464 12,405,464 8,457,183

62,954,546 - - 62,954,546

9,100,000 . - 9,100,000

16,344,032 - - - 16,344,032

12,235,604 = - - 12,235,604

267,671 - - 267,671

100,901,853 - . - 100,901,853
(80,039,206) 12,405,464 - 12,405,464  (92,444,670)
(80,039,206) 12,405,464 - 12405464 (92,444,670

2020
Interest/mark up bearing Not interest
Toial Maturity Maturity /mark up
up to one after one bearing
year vear Sub-total
Rupees

918,810 - 918,810

4619018 = 4619018

2,905,508 - - - 2,905,508

30519406  23,895.776 - 23,895,776 6,623,630

38,962,742  23,895.776 - 23,895,776 15,066,966

63,282,547 - - 63,282 547

9,100,000 . - - 9,100,000

13,832,848 . - 13,832,848

5,566,077 - - 5,566,077

13,226,268 . - 13,226,268

267,671 - - - 267,671

105275411 - - 105,275,411
{66312,669) 23,805.776 23,895,776 (90,208,445)
(66.312,669) 23,895,776 - 23,895,776 (90,208, 445)
o
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35.1

35.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of share holders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Company's activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of
risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price
risk) arising from the financial instruments it holds.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital
with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties fail to perform as contracied and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The
Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance
with the intemal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures before any
credit enhancements. Out of total financial assets of Rs. 20.863 million (2020: Rs. 38.963 million),
the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 20.763 million (2020: Rs, 38.934
million). The carrying amounts of financial assets exposed to credit risk at reporting date are as
under:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Long term security deposits 918.810 918.810
Trade debts 2433822 4619018
Loans and advances 3,024 500 2,905,508
Bank balances 14,385,548 30,491,052

20,762,680 38,934 388

The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is as follows:

Past due 1-30 days 2,402,027 3,065,334
Past due 30-90 days 7.983 431,350
Past due 90 days 33,780 1.217.680

2,443,790 4,714,364

To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade receivables, management performs credit
reviews taking into account the customer's financial position, past experience and other factors.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain pafatf's
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The exposure to banks is managed by dealing with variety of major banks and monitoring exposure
limits on continuous basis. The ratings of banks range from A to AAA.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual
obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Impaired assets

During the year no assets have been impaired.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements, if any:

Carrving  Contractual Six months Six to One Two to Over
L]
Amount Cash or less Twelve two five five
Flows monihs years years years
Rupees

2021
Deferrad
liakilition 16,344,032 16,344,032 . - - - 16,344,032
Long term loan
from directors 62054546 62,954,546 - 62,954 546
Short term loan
from directors 9,100,000 9,100,000 - 9,100,000 - - -
e 1o associated
undertaking ) i i 1 -
Trade and other
payables 13,856,646 13,856,646 6928323 6928323 . .
Dividend
payable/
Uneclaimed 267,671 267.671 - 267,671

102,522,895 102,522,895 6,928,323 79,250,540 - i 16,344,032

—_’—
frsss
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(1)

(i)

Carrying  Contractusl Six months Six to One Twa to Over

to
Amouni Cash or less Twelve two five five
Flows months  years years YEars
Rupees
2020
Deferred
liabilities 13,832,848 13,832,848 . . . : 13,832,848
Long term loan
from directors 63,282,547 63,282,547 . 63282547 - .
Short term loan
from directors 9,100,000 9,100,000 = 9,100,000 - - -
Due to associated
sadertekng 5566077 5,566,077 . 5566077 - - :
Trade and other
payables 17.895,782 17,895,782 8,947,891 8,947,891 " -
Dividend
paynble /
Unclaimed 267,671 267,671 . 267,671
109,944,925 109,944,925 8947891 87,164,186 . - 13,832 848
# —_ S —_— ——
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will effect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arise in financial instruments that are
denominated in foreign currencies i.c. in a currency other than the functional currency in which they
are measured.

Presently the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises
from long term loans and short borrowings. At the statement of financial position date, the interest
rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Rates Carrying amount
In Percent Rupees -
Financial assets
Bank balances 0.02 to 0.06 12405464 23,895,776
[l
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(iii)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increase / (decrease)
profit for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
prior year.

Profit and loss (post tax)
100 bps 100 bps
increase decrease
s mmmm— R“Iﬂ'ﬂ e
As at June 30, 2021
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assets 88,079 (88,079)
——————————— —_————
As at June 30, 2020
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial assels 167,270 (167,270)
——————— EE——s

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and
assets / liahilities of the Company.

Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

At the year end the Company is not exposed to price risk since there are no financial instruments
whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and
there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, indusiry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis.
IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements and fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair
value hierarchy has the following levels:
- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are abservable for the asset

either directly that is, derived from prices.

Bl ates
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36.1

36.2

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( that is,
unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized at the end of the reporting period
during which the changes have occurred.

As of the reporting date, none of the financial instruments of the Company are carried at fair value.

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

The Company has revalued its frechold land, buildings and plant and machinery on December 31,
2017. Fair value of property plant and equipment are based on the valuations carried out by an
independent valuer M/s Asrem (Private) Limited on the basis of market value,

Fair value of land and building are based on assumptions considered to be level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the valuation, while fair value of plant and
machinery are considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to significant unobservable
inputs used in the valuation.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Land and Building

Fair value of land and building has been derived using a sales comparison approach, Sale prices of
comparable land and buildings in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such
as location and size of the property. Moreover value of building also depends upon the type of
construction, age and quality. The most significant input in this valuation approach is price / rate per
square foot in particular locality. This valuation is considered to be level 2 in fair value hierarchy due
to significant observable inputs used in the valuation.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 3 fair values - Plant and Machinery

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the fair value is determined by taking into
account the following factors:

- Make, model, country of origin and etc.;
- Operational capacity;

- Present physical condition;

- Resale prospects; and

- Obsolescence.

The valuation is considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the above unobservable
inputs used in the valuation. Most significant input in this valuation is the current replacement cost
which is adjusted for factors above.

Padatnd .
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363 A reconciliation from opening balances to closing balances of fair value measurements categorized in level 3 is provided below:

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair values)
Additions - Cost

Depreciation charge

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair values)

There were no transfers between levels 2 and 3 for recurring fair value measurements during the year,

36.4 Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the specific classes of operating assets have been disclosed in note 6.

3

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance at June 30, 2020

Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from loan and borrowings
Repayments of loan and borrowings

Total changes from financing cash Mows

Equity related
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer from revaluation surplus
Dividend paid during the year
Total equity related other changes

Balance as at June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
22,592,715 24,996,536
2,017,938 100,000
(2,339.805) (2,503,821)
22,270,848 22,592.715
Liabilities | Equity
Loan from Director Due to ;
samacialet M.r. ja o -
Long term | Short term | undertaking P .
Rupees
63,282,547 9,100,000 5,566,077 13,000000 (58,480,232) 32,468392
(328,001) - | (5,566077) - (5,894,078)
(328,001) (3,566,077) (5,894,078)
= - - - 4,541,756 4,541,756
- - 1,890,403 1,890,403
- 6,432,159 6,432,139
62954546 9,100,000 - 13,000,000  (52,048,073) 33006473
Latatans
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR ALL SHARE ISLAMIC INDEX

Following information has been disclosed with reference to disclosure requirements of fourth
schedule of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to "All Shares Islamic Index".

June 30, June 30,
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Description Explanation
Loans and advances Non-interest bearing - -
Deposits Non-interest bearing - -
Segment revenue The Company has only one segment - .
Bank balances as Placed under interest arrangement - -
at June 30, Placed under Shariah

permissible 12,405,464 23,895,776
Income on bank Placed under interest arrangement - -
deposits Placed under Shariah

permissible = .
Gain/(loss) on
available-for-sale
investments - .
Dividend income - -
All sources of other income disclosed in note 28 43,630 19.618
Exchange gain Eamned from actual currency - -
Relationship with
banks having Islamic Meczan Bank Limited - -

There is no other bank balance / investments which carry any interest or markup arrangements.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Roard's nolicy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. lhe Boara ol LAreciors

monitors the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by
total shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders, There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital require m,:ﬂi
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2021 2020

Rupees Rupees

Capital structure of company is as follows
Equity 65,297,359 60,755,603
Long term Loan from directors - -
Short Term Loan from directors 72,382,547 72,382,547

137,679,906 133,138,150

2021 2020

Numbers Numbers
PLANT CAPACITY, PRODUCTION AND EMPLOYEES
No. of spindles installed 8,388 8,388
Installed capacity converted into 20's count Ibs. 6,601,618 6,601,618
Actual production converted into 20's count Ibs. 4,502,610 3,738,140
Actual production in lbs. 4,355,700 3,616,000
Average count manufactured 21 21
No. of shifts worked daily 2 2

Reasons for under utilization of capacity

The Company could not achieve the installed capacity due to excessive electricity shut down which
resulted in decrease in one production shift.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2021 2020
Numbers Numbers
Total number of employees as at June 30, 292 282
Average during the year 283 274

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATMENTS

The pandemic of COVID-19 that has rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered
human lives but has also adversely impacted the global economy. Since March 2020, the
Government of Pakistan announced temporary lock downs from time to time as a measure to reduce
the spread of the COVID-19, However, after implementing all the necessary Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safety of employees, the Company henceforth continued its operations
in order to maintain business performance despite slowed down economic activity.

According 1o management’s assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of
COVID-19 in these financial statements. Management is confident that they have sufficient
liquidity to support the business operations in future. In this regard company is able to meet its
obligations as they come due and no such indications exists that may trigger impairment of ils
assels.
fudoss
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CORRESPFPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of
comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has been made
during the year.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directorson _ 2 [ £°P 2071.

GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
fhetise
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 2272
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON 30.06.2021
1.1 Name of the Company ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the sharcholders

Shareholding Total Shares
2.2 Mo. of Shareholders From To Held
36 | 100 999
22 101 500 9,206
i3 501 1,000 21,076
24 1,001 5,000 51,207
| 5,001 10,000 9,000
1 15.001 20,000 19,244
| 70,001 75,000 73,500
! 150,001 155.000 152,743
| 195,001 200,000 199,625
1 200,001 205,000 200,200
| 560,001 565,000 563,200
122 1, 30400, 000
2.3 Categories of Sharcholders Shares Held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 1.058.369 B1.4130%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associnted Companies, 0 0.0000%
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
Financial Institutions, Non 0
Banking Financial Instiutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies 0 0.0000%
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds 0 0.0000%
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% or more 1.115.868 R5.B360%
2.3.8 General Public
. Local 88,888 6.8375%
b. Foreign 0 0.0000%

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies 152,743 11.7495%



ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED
Categories of Sharcholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)

As on June 30, 2021
No. of
Sr. No. |Name Shares Held Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
(Name Wise Detail): - -
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail) - -
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
! MR. MAHBOOB ELAHI (CDC) + 563,200 43.3231
2 MR. MAHFOOZ ELAHI 199,675 15.3596
3 MR. MAHMOOD ELAHI 200,250 15.4038
4 SH. FARRUKH AHMED 2,500 0.1923
5 MR. AHMED SHAFFI (CDC) 19,244 1.4803
(3} MRS. SAMINA BEGUM (CDC) 73,500 5.6538
;' MR. MUHAMMAD AZEEM AFZAL HASHMI . - -

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: . .

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance - -
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

1 MR. MAHBOOB ELAHI 563,200 433231
2 MR. MAHMOOD ELAHI 200,250 154038
3 MR.MAHFOOZ ELAHI 199,675  15.3596
4 SALIM SOZER SECURITIES (PVT) LTD, (CDC) © 152,743 11.7495
5 MRS. SAMINA BEGUM (CDC) 73,500  5.6538

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, CEO, CFO, Company
Secretary and their spouses and minor children:

NIL




Falio No. CDC Accouni No,
Participant 1. D. Account No.

PROXY FORM
IM'We of ‘ being o member/members of
ELAHI COTTON MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint (name)
of (Full address) or failing him/her
(name) of

(Full address) another member of
the company as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf, at the 51* Annual General Meeting
of the company to be held at registered office of the Company at Plot # 270, Se::mr 1-9, Industrial Area, Islamabad
on October 25, 2021 at 10.30 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of in the presence of
the following withesscs

Signature on Rupees Five
Revenue Stamp
(Signature should agree with the
specimen signature registered with
the company)
Witness 1 Witness 2
Signalure Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address Address
Importani

l. A member entitled to attend and vote at this Annual General Meeting of the company may appoint another
member as proxy to attend and voie instead of him / her. No person shall act as proxy, who is not a member.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member (s) or by his'her attorney duly authorized in
writing. If the member is a corporation, its common seal should be affixed (o the instrument.

3. This Proxy Form, duly completed, must be deposited at the company's Registered Office, at Plot # 270, Sector
I-9, Industrinl Area, Islamabad, not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting,

4. The Proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

3. In cose of individual CDC Account holders, antested copy of CNIC or passport (as the case may be) of the
beneficial owner will have to be provided with this Proxy.

6. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the
nominee shall be submitted along-with this Proxy.
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